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Purpose
[bookmark: _gjdgxs]This questionnaire is meant to assist you with Task 1, Define Needs, as you conduct your Pre-Award Transition activities[footnoteRef:1].  The Needs Assessment Tool can be used as a starting point for agencies/organizations to begin determining payment solution program needs under the GSA SmartPay 3 program (SP3).  This tool should be used during the pre-award period, preferably well before the Master Contract is awarded, to allow ample time[footnoteRef:2] to consider all aspects of the agency’s/organization’s payment solution program prior to awarding a task order.  The results of the needs assessment can be used to prioritize agency/organization needs, determine task order type (i.e., standard, tailored, tag-along, or pool), develop a task order request, and begin planning for some pre- and post-award activities. [1:  See the GSA SmartPay 3 Pre-Award Transition Checklist.]  [2:  The time to complete a Needs Assessment will vary by organization, depending on size, complexity, program structure, and availability of resources.  It is estimated that this phase could take approximately 6 - 9 months for a medium-sized agency with 3-4 dedicated FTEs.] 


How to Use this Tool
· [bookmark: _30j0zll]You will want to have a copy of the GSA SmartPay 3 RFP available for reference as you proceed through the questionnaire (the RFP, which incorporates all amendments, can be found at https://smartpay.gsa.gov.  At the end of each question, you will find a reference to the section of the RFP that addresses that topic, for example “(C.1.2)”.  
· [bookmark: _1fob9te]Additionally, it may be helpful to refer to your agency’s/organization’s current task order(s) while considering your agency’s/organization’s needs for SP3.  
· Begin completing the questionnaire by responding to the questions you can answer on your own.  Be sure to document your responses.  Next, review the remaining unanswered questions and identify the people in your agency/organization (executives, finance personnel, IT personnel, etc.) who may be able to provide the answers.  Consult with these personnel as necessary to answer the remaining questions.
· You may not need to answer every question.  The questionnaire is designed to jumpstart your thinking in the various areas that need to be considered when assessing your agency’s/organization’s payment solution needs.
· Questions marked with a
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   (Purchase),               (Travel),               (Fleet), or                 (Integrated) 
are specific to a business line.  Those A/OPCs assigned to a specific business line may skip the questions marked for other business lines.  However, it may be helpful to discuss some needs at an organization-wide level (i.e., in coordination with the agency’s/organization’s lead A/OPCs for other business lines).
· Following the completion of the questionnaire, analyze your answers and identify those needs which will be the highest priority for your agency/organization under SP3.  It may be helpful to make a first pass and “star” questions or topic areas that represent high priority needs, and then go back and rank these areas to establish a rough priority order.  You will want to ensure that your agency/organization executives (and anyone else with the authority to make decisions for your agency’s/organization’s payment solution program) agree with this prioritization of needs.  
· After you have completed the steps above, you should be prepared to write your agency’s/organization’s statement of work (SOW).  In fact, the sections of the Needs Assessment Tool (e.g., “I. Services Required”) are meant to mirror those of a typical SOW.
· [bookmark: _3znysh7]Finally, be sure to review your answers in the Transition section to assist you in developing or revising your transition plans, as necessary. 
· Use of this tool is not mandatory.  This document is meant to be a resource to support your transition efforts.  Should you have any questions, please contact the Center for Charge Card Management at gsa_smartpay@gsa.gov or (703) 605-2808.
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[bookmark: _2et92p0]I.	Services Required
A. Objectives
1. [bookmark: _tyjcwt]What are your agency’s/organization’s payment solution program objectives? (C.3)
B. Scope of Work
2. Which business line(s) does your agency/organization require:
a. Purchase?
b. Travel?
i. Individually billed accounts (IBAs) (billed directly to the individual account holder who is reimbursed by the agency/organization)?
ii. Centrally billed accounts (CBAs) (billed directly to the agency/organization)?
iii. Both?
iv. GSA SmartPay Tax Advantage Travel Card?
c. Fleet?
d. Integrated?
i. If Integrated, which business lines?
3. Does your agency/organization intend to include all business lines needed in one task order?
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4. [bookmark: _3dy6vkm]Is your agency/organization a mandatory, non-mandatory, or ineligible user of the City Pair Program (see definition of City Pair Program at C.1)?
C. Definitions
5. [bookmark: _1t3h5sf]Is there agency/organization-specific definitions required? (C.1)
D. Background
6. Do the Offerors need additional background information before submitting their final price proposals?
a. What is the expected total number of account holders/cards (by business line)? (Note: This information should be provided as background only, not a guarantee of business.)
b. How large is the program (i.e., historical annual program spend, number of transactions – by business line)?
c. Does the agency/organization have any other “unique” purchasing habits (e.g., large ticket payments, utility payments, grants etc.)?
d. How many A/OPCs and AOs support the program?
e. [bookmark: _4d34og8]Is there other relevant historical information (e.g. average billing cycle length)? (B.1)



[bookmark: _2s8eyo1][bookmark: _17dp8vu]II.	Task Order Pricing Requirements
A. Refund Requirements
1. Can your agency provide billing cycle information, average time to pay, and historical spend and refund information in order to request more advantageous pricing at the task order level? (B.2.1.2, B.1.5)
2. Does your agency/organization require refunds to be remitted by the Contractor to a hierarchy level other than the highest level of hierarchy? (B.3.1)
3. Does your agency/organization require more frequent refund remittance schedules (e.g., daily, weekly, monthly)? (B.3.1) If so, what is the frequency?
4. Does your agency/organization require procedures to be established to charge and collect compensation from the Contractor for late refund payments? (B.3.1)
5. Does your agency/organization require the fourth quarter refund payments to be made in the fourth quarter of the same fiscal year? If so, is the date the remittance is made to the agency/organization to be a date other than August 15th? (B.3.1.2)
6. Does your agency/organization require the first agency/organization refund remittance payment to be due on day other than the 15th calendar day of the FY Quarter following the first transactional period of performance? (B.3.1.1).
7. Does your agency/organization have a requirement for Standard Transactions? If so, for which business lines?  (NOTE: All business lines include Standard Transactions as separate refunds listed under Tier 1 CLINs.  For these CLINs and all associated sub-CLINs, Offerors shall propose a refund amount no less than the minimum stated that takes into account all costs associated with meeting Task Order and RFP requirements.) (B.2.2) 
8. Does your agency/organization have a requirement for Large Ticket Transactions? If so, for which business lines? (NOTE: All business lines include Large Ticket Transactions as separate refunds listed under Tier 1 CLINs.  For these CLINs and all associated sub-CLINs, Offerors shall propose a refund amount no less than the minimum stated that takes into account all costs associated with a meeting Task Order and RFP requirements.) (B.2.2)  
9. Does your agency/organization have a requirement for ePayable – Supplier Initiated Payments? If so, for which business lines? (NOTE: All business lines include ePayable – Supplier Initiated Payments as separate refunds listed under Tier 1 CLINs.  For these CLINs and all associated sub-CLINs, Offerors shall propose a refund amount no less than the minimum states, by sales volume or cents per transaction (based on agency/organization needs) that takes into account all costs associated with meeting Task Order and  RFP requirements.) (B.2.2)  







Refund Requirements (B.2.2)
	Description
	Need?
(Y/N)[footnoteRef:3] [3:  Agencies/organizations should strongly consider including all refund types in their task order. Although the agency/organization may not have certain transaction types currently, they may need to utilize them at some point during the 13 year contract period.] 

	Master Contract Minimum
	Notes/Business Lines

	Standard Transactions (Tier I)
	
	[bookmark: _GoBack]20 basis points
	

	Large Ticket Transactions (Tier I)
	
	15 basis points
	

	ePayable-Supplier Initiated Payments (Tier I)
	
	15 basis points or 20 cents per transaction
	

	Non-Interchange Based Government-to-Government Transactions (Tier I)
	
	N/A
	



B. Products and Services 
The following tables are derived from the product and services tables in the SP3 RFP (Section C.3.1.1 for Tier 1 and C.3.1.2 for Tier 2; see also C.1 for definitions).  At the Master Contract level, Contractors are required to offer all Tier 1 products and services; they are not required to – but may – offer all Tier 2 products/services.  Please fill in the tables to show whether your agency/organization needs the product or service listed, and the quantity required[footnoteRef:4].  You may need to attach separate sheets for products or services that require additional notes (e.g., for “Association Program Management Tools”).  It may also be useful to consider (and include a “note” on) whether your agency/organization requires each product or service now, or anticipates a future need for it. [4:  Additional detailed questions about some of these products and services are asked throughout section II, Task Order Requirements.] 
















a. Purchase (Tier 1 Requirements)
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	Description
	Need? (Y/N)
	Quantity
	Notes

	24 Hour EAS Customer Service
	
	
	

	Accounts Payable File Review
	
	
	

	Association Program Management Tools
	
	
	

	Chip Cards
	
	
	

	Convenience Checks
	
	
	

	Declining Balance Cards
	
	
	

	Email/SMS Alert Service
	
	
	

	ePayable - Supplier initiated Payments
	
	
	

	Foreign Currency Cards
	
	
	

	Ghost Card
	
	
	

	Interchange based  Government to Government Transactions
	
	
	

	Mobile Applications
	
	
	

	Mobile Payments
	
	
	

	Net Billing
	
	
	

	Non-Interchange based Government to Government Transactions
	
	
	

	Real Time Web Assistance
	
	
	

	Single Use Account
	
	
	

	Tokenization
	
	
	

	Virtual Card
	
	
	



[bookmark: _3rdcrjn]






b. Travel (Tier 1 Requirements)
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	Description
	Need? (Y/N)
	Quantity
	Notes (e.g. IBA or CBA only)

	24 Hour EAS Customer Service
	
	
	

	Accounts Payable File Review
	
	
	

	Association Program Management Tools
	
	
	

	ATM Access
	
	
	

	Chip Cards
	
	
	

	Declining Balance Cards
	
	
	

	Email/SMS Alert Service
	
	
	

	ePayable – Supplier Initiated Payments
	
	
	

	Foreign Currency Cards
	
	
	

	Ghost Card
	
	
	

	GSA SmartPay Tax Advantage Travel Card Account
	
	
	

	Interchange based Government to Government Transactions
	
	
	

	Mobile Applications
	
	
	

	Mobile Payments
	
	
	

	Net Billing
	
	
	

	Non-Interchange based Government to Government Transactions
	
	
	

	Real time Web Assistance
	
	
	

	Single Use Account
	
	
	

	Tokenization
	
	
	

	Virtual Card
	
	
	


[bookmark: _26in1rg]


[bookmark: _lnxbz9]

c. Fleet (Tier 1 Requirements)
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	Description
	Need? (Y/N)
	Quantity
	Notes

	24 Hour EAS Customer Service
	
	
	

	Accounts Payable File Review
	
	
	

	Association Program Management Tools
	
	
	

	Chip Cards
	
	
	

	Email/SMS Alert Service
	
	
	

	ePayable – Supplier Initiated Payments 
	
	
	

	Ghost Card
	
	
	

	Interchange based Government to Government Transactions
	
	
	

	Mobile Applications
	
	
	

	Mobile Payments
	
	
	

	Net Billing
	
	
	

	Non-Interchange based Government to Government Transactions
	
	
	

	Real Time Web Assistance
	
	
	

	Single Use Account
	
	
	

	Tokenization
	
	
	

	Virtual Card
	
	
	





d. [bookmark: _35nkun2]Integrated (Tier 1 Requirements)
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	Description
	Need? (Y/N)
	Quantity
	Notes

	24 Hour EAS Customer Service
	
	
	

	Accounts Payable File Review
	
	
	

	Association Program Management Tools
	
	
	

	ATM Access
	
	
	

	Chip Cards
	
	
	

	Convenience Checks
	
	
	

	Declining Balance Cards
	
	
	

	Email/SMS Alert Service
	
	
	

	ePayable – Supplier Initiated Payments 
	
	
	

	Foreign Currency Cards
	
	
	

	Ghost Card
	
	
	

	Interchange based Government to Government Transactions
	
	
	

	Mobile Applications
	
	
	

	Mobile Payments
	
	
	

	Net Billing
	
	
	

	Non-Interchange based Government to Government Transactions
	
	
	

	Real Time Web Assistance
	
	
	

	Single Use Account	
	
	
	

	Tokenization
	
	
	

	Virtual Card
	
	
	





e. [bookmark: _1ksv4uv]Purchase (Tier 2 Value Added Product and Service Offerings)
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	Description
	Need? (Y/N)
	Quantity
	Notes

	Additional Authorization Controls
	
	
	

	Additional Data Mining Tools
	
	
	

	Additional International Customer Service
	
	
	

	Combined Charge Card and Identification Card Technology
	
	
	

	Commercially Offered Convenience Services
	
	
	

	Emerging Technology
	
	
	

	ePayable – Buyer-Initiated Payments 
	
	
	

	ePayable – Straight-Through Processing 
	
	
	

	Optional ATM Products and Services for the Purchase Card
	
	
	

	Software
	
	
	




f. [bookmark: _44sinio] Travel (Tier 2 Value Added Product and Service Offerings)
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Description
	Need? (Y/N)
	Quantity
	Notes

	Additional Authorization Controls
	
	
	

	Additional Data Mining Tools
	
	
	

	Additional International Customer Service
	
	
	

	Combined Charge Card and Identification Card Technology
	
	
	

	Commercially Offered Convenience Services
	
	
	

	Emerging Technology
	
	
	

	ePayable – Buyer-Initiated Payments 
	
	
	

	ePayables – Straight-Through Processing  
	
	
	

	Software
	
	
	


g. Fleet (Tier 2 Value Added Product and Service Offerings 
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Description
	Need? (Y/N)
	Quantity
	Notes

	Additional Authorization Controls
	
	
	

	Additional Data Mining Tools
	
	
	

	Additional International Customer Service
	
	
	

	After-Hours Road Side Assistance
	
	
	

	Combined Charge Card and Identification Card Technology
	
	
	

	Commercially Offered Convenience Services
	
	
	

	Emerging Technology
	
	
	

	ePayable – Buyer-Initiated Payments
	
	
	

	ePayable – Straight-Through Processing
	
	
	

	International Fleet Solution
	
	
	

	Optional Convenience Check Products/Services
	
	
	

	Software
	
	
	

	Telematics
	
	
	



















h. Integrated (Tier 2 Value Added Product and Service Offerings)
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	[bookmark: _2jxsxqh]Description
	Need? (Y/N)
	Quantity
	Notes

	Additional Authorization Controls
	
	
	

	Additional Data Mining Tools
	
	
	

	Additional International Customer Service
	
	
	

	After-Hours Road Side Assistance
	
	
	

	Combined Charge Card and Identification Card Technology
	
	
	

	Commercially Offered Convenience Services
	
	
	

	Emerging Technology
	
	
	

	ePayable – Buyer-Initiated Payments 
	
	
	

	ePayables – Straight- Through Processing
	
	
	

	International Fleet Solution
	
	
	

	Optional ATM Products and Services for the Purchase Transactions
	
	
	

	Software
	
	
	

	Telematics
	
	
	


[bookmark: _z337ya]
[bookmark: _3j2qqm3]




[bookmark: _1y810tw]III.	Task Order Technical Requirements
A. Schedules of Services for Base and Option Periods
1. Does your agency/organization require a tiered pricing approach with separate single refund amounts based on  spend volume or speed of pay for eligible CLINS/sub-CLINS (e.g increased refund amounts for a higher amount of annual spend than the historical averages)? If so, for which CLINS and what base and/or option periods? (B.4, B.2.1.2) (Note: Agencies/organizations may require the Contractor to offer tiered pricing with separate single refund amounts, applicable in the event an agency/organization does not make payment consistent with their historical payment performance. Request and acceptance of such a schedule is at the sole discretion of the agency/organization.)
B. Card Design and Embossing
2. Does your agency/organization need generic cards or quasi-generic cards (e.g., for traveling abroad or undercover operations)?  If so, how many?  (Note: The difference is the generic cards do not show any affiliation with the Government, whereas the quasi-generic cards will use the Government’s account numbering scheme.)  (See Generic Cards at C.3.2.4, Quasi-Generic Cards at C.3.2.5, and Account Number at C.3.3.6.)
3. Does your agency/organization require “sample” cards?  If so, how many? (C.3.2.6)


I




T




P


4. Does your agency/organization require pseudonym cards? If so, how many? (C.3.2.3)
5. What information needs to be printed/embossed on your agency’s/organization’s cards?  (C.3.2)
a. Embossed
i. A 20-character alphanumeric field for agency/organization use (may be used for the agency’s/organization’s tax exempt number). 			[image: ]
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ii. Equipment Identification (alphanumeric). This should allow easy distinction between multiple cards issued to the same Customer Unit. 
b. Printed.6.2.1.3)
i.  A minimum 15 digit alphanumeric discretionary field.[image: ]
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ii.  The statement “For fuel and minor parts/services only”, at the request of the agency/organization and as space permits.[image: ]
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iii. The statement “Authorized Product Type”. The agency/organization will state which lines it requires at the task order level.
[bookmark: _4i7ojhp]
C. Customer Service 
6. Does your agency/organization require that the Offeror identify any additional key personnel?  If so, specify responsibilities. (C.4.1.1)
7. Does your agency/organization require that the key personnel are available during different hours than specified (i.e., Contract Administrator 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. EST and Customer Relationship Manager (CRM) 7:00 a.m. – 9:00 p.m. EST)? (C.4.1.1)
8. Does your agency/organization require Customer Service Representatives (CSRs) who speak any other languages (i.e., other than those offered to commercial customers)? (C.4.1.1.4)
9. Does your agency/organization have specific customer service needs for the following audiences (C.4.1.1.4):
c. Agency/Organization Program Coordinators (A/OPCs) and agency officials?
d. Account holders?
e. [bookmark: _2xcytpi]International customers?
D. Quality Assurance 
10. Does your agency/organization require any additional software quality assurance measures?  If so, what are they? (C.6.1.1)
11. Does your agency/organization require any additional areas to be included in the satisfaction surveys? If so, what are they? (C.6.1.2)
12. Does your agency/organization require surveys to be conducted to assess the quality of its training content and presentation? (C.6.1.2.1)
13. Does your agency/organization require surveys to be conducted to assess the quality of its customer agency/organization satisfaction? (C.6.1.2.2)
14. Does your agency/organization require any additional information to be included in the Contractor Problem Report? If so, what additional information is required? (C.6.1.3)
E. Establishing and Maintaining Accounts
15. Does your agency/organization want to request a (post-award) meeting with the Contractor to discuss program account management and implementation procedures? (C.3.3)
16. Does your agency/organization have a complete master file, ready to transfer to the Contractor at the start of the new contract?  If not, what steps will your agency/organization need to take to prepare this data? (C.3.3.1, C.7.2.2.1)
17. What type of support does your agency/organization require the Contractor to provide to complete the following activities (C.3.3.1):
a. Assist in setting up accounts
b. Provide authorization controls
c. Establish CBAs and/or IBAs
i. City Pair Program
ii. Tax Advantage Travel Card Accounts
d. Provide single randomly generated account numbers with the ability to have multiple sub-accounts each with individual card/account numbers
e. Make cards/accounts valid for a specified period
f. Provide PINs for associated Chip Cards
g. Assist in establishing online or mobile access for viewing statements and make payments
h. Include account type identifier
18. Does your agency/organization require the ability to submit program forms by other than electronic means (e.g., paper-based via fax or mail)? (C.3.3.1)
19. Does your agency/organization require account number to be sequential? (C.3.3.6)
20. Does your agency/organization require that the Contractor mail cards to account holders’ personal addresses (i.e., home addresses), or to another address (e.g., to the account holders’ offices, to A/OPCs, etc.)? (C.3.3.2.1)[image: ]
21. What are your agency’s/organization’s delivery requirements (e.g., via USPS, DHL, Federal Express, UPS, other means)? (C.3.3.2)
22. Does your agency/organization have any additional delivery requirements? (C.3.3.2)
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23. Does your agency/organization want to specify that cards about to expire are not automatically renewed, unless otherwise specified by the A/OPC based on the list provided by the Contractor?  (C.3.3.5, C.3.3.5.1)[image: ]
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24. Does your agency/organization want to specify that cards that are about to expire and have not been used for 90 days are automatically cancelled, unless otherwise specified by the A/OPC?  If so, specify your agency’s/organization’s requirements. (C.3.3.5.2) 
F. GSA SmartPay Tax Advantage Travel Card Accounts
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25. Does your agency/organization require the GSA SmartPay Tax Advantage Travel Card account? If so, what are the requirements? (C.3.1.1)
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26. What are your agency/organization's implementation procedure requirements for the GSA Tax Advantage Travel Card account?(C.3.3.1.2)
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27. Does your agency have any additional set-up requirements for the GSA Tax Advantage Travel Card account? (C.3.3.2.1)
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28. [bookmark: _1ci93xb]What specific elements are required for the GSA Tax Advantage Travel Card account invoices? (C.3.3.7)
G. Credit Bureaus
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29. OMB Circular A-123, Appendix B (section 4.5) allows that “appropriate agency personnel” may notify credit bureaus for delinquent travel account holders.  What are your agency’s/organization’s rules regarding information being provided to credit bureaus? (C.3.3.9)
H. [bookmark: _2bn6wsx]Delinquency and Suspension
30. Does your agency/organization have additional delinquency control/assistance requirements?  (C.3.3.10)
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31. In the case of an Integrated card, if there is a suspension on one of business lines, should it impact the other business line(s)? (C.3.3.11.3) If so, which business line is impacted and how?
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32. [bookmark: _qsh70q]For the Integrated Card, does your agency organization require additional risk mitigating measures by individual business line (Purchase, Travel, Fleet)?  Such measures may include, but not be limited to, instruction that a delinquency on one business line may make all business lines unavailable for the account holder. (C.3.3.10.2)
I. Continuity of Operations
33. [bookmark: _3as4poj]Does your agency/organization have specific requirements for what the Contractor should include in a Continuity of Operations  or Government-wide Shutdown plan? (C.6.2.1, C.6.2.2)
J. Emergency Card Use
34. [bookmark: _1pxezwc]Does your agency/organization have any special needs related to emergency or short-term card use that have not been covered in the RFP? (C.3.3.3 and C.3.3.4)
K. Tax Exemption / Reclamation
35. Does your agency/organization have any additional tax exemption requirements that are not included in the RFP? (C.5.3.1, C.5.3.3)
36. Does your agency/organization require a tax exemption identification number be embossed on the payment solution? If so, what is the number? (C.5.3.1, C.5.3.3)
37. Does your agency/organization have any additional tax reclamation assistance requirements? (C.5.3.2, C.5.3.3)
L. [bookmark: _49x2ik5]Merchant Acceptance
38. Does your agency/organization have any additional merchant acceptance requirements (e.g., specific vendors, international acceptance)? (C.3.4)
39. Will your agency/organization policy permit participation in merchant loyalty programs? (NOTE: Rewards or incentives are identified as property of the Government and may only be used for official business purposes.) (C.3.4)
M. [bookmark: _2p2csry]Strategic Sourcing
40. [bookmark: _147n2zr]Does your agency/organization have any additional strategic sourcing requirements (e.g., functionalities/tools needed)? (C.5.2)
N. Program Monitoring and Analytics
41. Does your agency/organization have any additional data mining requirements? (C.7.4.1)
42. [bookmark: _3o7alnk]Does your agency/organization have any additional requirements for assistance in identifying and investigating alleged wrongdoing or suspected fraud, waste, misuse or abuse of charge cards and related products? (C.7.4.2)
43. [bookmark: _23ckvvd]Does your agency/organization require any additional fraud analytics tools/capabilities not listed in the SOW? (C.7.4.3)
44. [bookmark: _ihv636]Does your agency/organization require any additional case management system function listed in the SOW? (C.7.4.4)
O. Fees
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45. Does your agency/organization wish to allow late fees to be assessed on IBAs earlier than the RFP allows (i.e., 126 days past closing date of the billing cycle)? (C.3.3.16)  (Note: Inclusion of standard commercial late fees at the task order level may be contingent upon the agency’s/organization’s successful negotiations with union officials.)[image: ]
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46. Does your agency/organization wish to allow the Contractor to charge their standard commercial late fee in accordance with standard commercial practice on Travel IBAs? (NOTE: Inclusion of standard commercial late fees at the task order level is contingent upon the agency’s/organization’s successful negotiations with union officials. The Government shall not be liable for late fees on IBAs; all late fees are the responsibility of the individual account holder.) (C.3.3.16.1)
47. Does your agency/organization require that the Contractor identify the conversion rate and any other third party fees related to foreign purchases charged on the statement of account, invoice, and related reports?  If not, what does your agency/organization require? (C.3.3.16.2)
P. Invoicing/Billing/Payment
(Note: It may be necessary to bring in accounting/finance resources to assist in answering these questions.)

48. Does your agency/organization require submission of a Statement of Account?  If so, to whom should it be submitted (e.g., account holder, Designated Billing Official)? (C.3.3.8)
49. Will your agency/organization provide the Contractor with instructions as to how to apply payment against centrally billed travel accounts?  Other accounts?  Will these be determined in advance, or on a case-by-case basis? (C.3.3.15)[image: ]
50. Does your agency/organization want to apply payments on split disbursements against charges other than the oldest charges?  If so, what are your agency’s/organization’s requirements? (C.3.3.14.2)
51. Does your agency/organization require the Contractor to track individual account holders’ payments by a unique identifier or Social Security Number? (C.3.3.15) [image: ]
52. What are the start and end dates for your agency/organization’s billing cycle? (C.3.3.7)
53. Does you agency/organization require a medium other than electronic (e.g. paper) for invoicing? (C.3.3.7)
54. Does your agency/organization require a billing cycle that is other than 30 days (e.g., daily, weekly, 45-day billing cycles)? (NOTE: A billing cycle other than 30 days could result in lower refunds.) (C.3.3.7)
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55. What specific elements does your agency/organization require for the Integrated and GSA SmartPay Tax Advantage Travel Card accounts invoices? (C.3.3.7)[image: ]
56. Does your agency/organization require additional information in its invoices?  If so, specify what information is required. (C.3.3.7)
57. Does your agency/organization require a copy of the invoice and copy of the transaction data be provided to your agency’s/organization’s TMC/CTO or travel system Contractors? If so, in what medium should it be provided? (C.3.3.7.1)
58. Does your agency/organization require an itemized invoice containing the Government purchase authorization for Fleet Transactions? If so, do you require it in a separate report? (C.3.7.7.2)
59. Does your agency/organization require additional means of reconciling invoices? (C.3.3.14)?
60. Will your agency/organization reconcile invoices or assign a designee? If assigning a designee, who will it be? (C.3.3.14.1)
61. Does you agency organization have additional reconciliation requirements? If, so what are they? (C.3.3.14)[image: ]
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62. Which transactions should be centrally billed versus individually billed? (Note: Purchase and Fleet accounts are all CBAs.) (C.2.1.3 and C.2.1.4)
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63. [bookmark: _1hmsyys]Will your agency/organization allow individually billed account balances to be referred to outside collection entities?  (Note: The agency/organization may already have – or develop – a standard policy or choose to make determinations on a case-by-case basis.) (C.3.3.11.1 and C.3.3.12.1) 
Q. Electronic Access System (EAS)
(Note: It may be necessary to involve IT resources to assist in answering these questions.)

64. Does your agency/organization require the EAS to be compatible with mainframes, databases, operating systems and devices? (C.7.1)
65. Will your agency/organization require any custom configurations to interface with Contractor systems? (C.7.1)
66. Does your agency/organization have additional requirements for EAS functionality that are not already included in the RFP? (C.7.1)
67. Does your agency/organization anticipate any major modifications or upgrades to its existing internal systems (specifically those that the Contractor would be required to interface with)?  If so, what changes are planned?  When will these changes be made?  How will this schedule align against the implementation of the transition to SP3? (Related to C.7.1)
68. Does your agency/organization want a single sign-on capability for the Contractor system? (C.7.1, Requirement Number 14) 
69. Does your agency/organization intend to ask the Contractor to demonstrate its EAS system’s functionality prior to the transactional period of performance?  If so, what is the “certification” process? (C.2.2.1)
R. [bookmark: _41mghml]Security
(Note: It may be necessary to involve IT resources to assist in answering these questions.)

70. Does your agency/organization have any security requirements in addition to those stated in the RFP? (C.8)
71. Does your agency/organization have additional identity and access management security requirements? (C.8.8)
72. Does your agency/organization want to allow the inclusion of unmasked sensitive account holder data on reports, interfaces, statements of account, invoices, master files, and/or other applicable areas? (C.8.2)
73. Does your agency/organization require Contractor personnel to undergo additional security screening (i.e., beyond a background investigation)? (C.8.5.)
74. [bookmark: _2grqrue]Does your agency/organization require any additional authorization controls? If so, what are they? (C.8.14)
S. [bookmark: _vx1227]Data
(Note: It may be necessary to involve IT resources to assist in answering these questions.)

75. To what systems (e.g., financial, travel, HR) does your agency/organization need the Contractor to pass data and/or interface? (C.7.2)
76. In what file format(s) does your agency/organization require the Contractor to provide program and transaction data (e.g., ASCII, XML, XBRL, XLS)? (C.7.2)
77. Does your agency/organization require a custom interface file (for transmission of program and transaction data to its internal systems)?  If so, what systems are involved? (C.7.1 item 84)
78. What data should the Contractor provide in the master file? (C.7.2.2.1, Attachment 18)
79. Does your agency/organization require the inclusion of additional master file elements? (C.7.2.2.1.1, C.7.2.2.1.2, C.7.2.2.1.3)
80. Who in your agency/organization will have access to which data (e.g., how should the hierarchy and access controls be set up)? (C.7.2.3)
81. What are your agency’s/organization’s data quality standards? (C.7.2.1)
82. [bookmark: _3fwokq0]Will your agency/organization use additional Tier II data mining tools offered by the contractor? If so, what specific rules should be used for data mining parameters? (C.3.1.2)
T. Reporting 
83. Which standard reports does your agency/organization need? Does your agency/organization have additional reports required that are not listed? (C.7.3)
84. For each report, what are your agency’s/organization’s needs?(C.7.3)
f. How often should the report be provided (e.g., daily, weekly, bi-weekly, monthly)? 
g. Who should receive the report?
h. Does your agency/organization required the report(s) to be transmitted in a method other than through the EAS? If so, what method?
85. Does your agency/organization wish to establish performance objectives (e.g., timeliness, accuracy of reports, etc.) to assess the Contractor’s compliance with reporting requirements?  If so, specify. (C.7.3)
U. [bookmark: _1v1yuxt]Record Retention / Retrieval
86. [bookmark: _4f1mdlm]Does your agency/organization have record retention and retrieval needs beyond those listed in the RFP? (C.7.2.4)
87. Does your agency/organization intend to use the Contractor’s EAS as your agency’s/organization’s official records keeping system? If do, does your agency/organization have a transaction record retention and retrieval requirement longer than 6 years and for how long?(C.7.2.4)
V. [bookmark: _2u6wntf]Communications
88. What communications does your agency/organization want to receive from the Contractor?  What type(s) of information should be included in these communications? (C.4.3)
89. Does your agency/organization have any additional communication requirements related to (C.4.3):
a. The format of the newsletter (for posting to the agency/organization intranet)? (C.4.3.2)
b. Statement messaging? (C.4.3.3)
c. Other communications?
W. Knowledge Sharing
90. Does your agency/organization have any additional knowledge sharing assistance requirements? (C.4.3.4)
91. [bookmark: _19c6y18]What are your agency/organization’s timeframe (e.g., monthly, quarterly, daily) for knowledge sharing? (C.4.3.4)
X. Training
92. Does your agency/organization require any additional Contractor-provided training? (C.4.2.2)  If so:
a. What mode/format (e.g., web-based, classroom)?
b. Who is the target audience (e.g., account holders, A/OPCs)?
c. What topic areas should the training cover? 
d. What training materials are required?
93. Does your agency/organization require the Contractor to distribute the training guides and materials (e.g. account holder user guide, A/OPC guide, etc.) in a format other than electronic? ( C.4.2.2)
94. Does your agency/organization require additional content in the Account Holder User Guide? (C.4.2.3.1)
95. Does your agency/organization require any additional content in the A/OPC User Guide? (C.4.2.3.2)
96. Does your agency/organization require additional content in the Designated Billing Office (DBO) user guide? (C.4.2.3.3)
97. Does your agency/organization require additional content in the Transaction Dispute User Guide? (C.4.2.3.4)
Y. [bookmark: _3tbugp1]Transition
98. Does your agency/organization require the inclusion of performance measures to ensure compliance with the agency/organization transition schedule? If so, what will be measure and how? (C.2.2.2.1)
99. How many new account holders will your agency/organization have?  How many total account holders and/or accounts? 
100. Does your agency/organization require a meeting with the Contractor to discuss implementation procedures? (C.3.3)  (Also see question #15.)
101. What needs to happen with the data provided by the outgoing contractor?  Data cleansing (for accuracy, completeness, etc.)?  Is another Master File data needed (e.g., hierarchies)?  How is the data currently stored, and how will it be transferred? (C.2.2.2, C.7.2.2.1)
102. Does your agency/organization want electronic access to the Contractors’ presentation packages after the Master Contract Kick-Off Conference (e.g., to share with your agency/organization)? (C.2.2.1.2)
103. In what format should the contractor provide the program forms (e.g., account holder applications) during start-up implementation? (C.2.2)
104. What are your agency/organization’s card delivery requirements? (C.2.2)
105. Does your agency/organization require cards to be activated prior to the start of the transactional period? (C.2.2)  Note: This requires GSA CO approval.
106. What should be included in your agency/organization's transition schedule (e.g., submittal of program forms, operating system specifications, communication plan, requirements collection, data transmission and storage, security, training, new account distribution)? (C.2.2.2)
107. [bookmark: _28h4qwu]What transition training requirements does your agency/organization have? (C.2.2.1)
Z. Controls / Authorization / Notification / Alerts / Risk Mitigation
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108. What 12-digit alphanumeric identification number will the agency/organization provide (if any) to verify account holder employment (e.g., personnel number)? (C.7.2.2.1.1, C.7.2.2.1.2,)[image: ]
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109. What billing address will be used (e.g., home, work)? (C.7.2.2.1.2)
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110. What convenience check access indicator and limits will your agency/organization provide (if any) to verify user authorization to utilize convenience checks? (C.7.2.2.1.1) [image: ]
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111. Does your agency/organization require the ability to limit access to the ATM option?  If so, what limits are required? (C.8.14.2)
112. What are your agency’s/organization’s needs in regards to transaction authorizations? (C.8.14)
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113. Does your agency/organization require a billing cycle office limit (e.g., monthly, quarterly, other basis)? (C.8.14.1)
114. Does your agency/organization require additional authorization control requirements (i.e., other than those specified in C.8.14)?  If so, what are your agency’s/organization’s requirements?   (C.3.1.2)
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115. Does your agency/organization require preset authorization controls for travel and subsistence? (C.3.3.1, C.3.3.1.1) 
116. Does your agency/organization require additional information included in the automatic email or SMS alerts?  If so, what additional information is required? (C.3.1.1)
117. Does your agency/organization wish to allow the Contractor to institute any additional risk mitigation measures at the task order level?  (Note: If so, this may require negotiations with the union(s).) (C.3.10.2)
118. Does your agency/organization have any additional risk mitigation assistance requirements? (C.6.2)
119. Does your agency/organization want the contractor to deactivate accounts during a government-wide shut down? If so, which accounts? (C.6.2.1)
AA. Contracting
120. Does your agency/organization have any additional contract terms and conditions to add at the task order level? (Section I)




[bookmark: _nmf14n]IV.	Agency Contacts
121. Who will be the designated points of contact for your agency’s/organization’s task order(s)?  (Note: Your agency/organization may wish to establish separate points of contact for each business line.  If so, indicate which line or lines of business each point of contact will be responsible for.)
a. Senior Executive Sponsor
b. Contracting Officer (CO)
c. Designated Agency/Organization Program Coordinators (A/OPCs) for each business line:
i. Purchase
ii. Travel
iii. Fleet
iv. Integrated
d. Other A/OPCs
e. Approving Officials (AOs)
f. Information Technology liaison(s)
g. Finance liaison(s) (e.g., Designated Billing Office)
[bookmark: _37m2jsg]
V.	Agency Organizational Structure
122. How is your agency/organization structured?  (For example: “Agency X is headquartered in Washington, D.C. with 5 regional offices in Seattle, WA; Omaha, NE; Dallas, TX; Columbus, OH; and Nashua, NH.”)
[bookmark: _1mrcu09]
VI.	Period of Performance
123. How will your agency/organization split up its base and option periods for its task order? (H.12.6)
[bookmark: _46r0co2]
VII.	Task Order Type
124. What task order type will the agency/organization use[footnoteRef:5]? (H.12.1) [5:  For more information on task order type, refer to the GSA SmartPay 3 Frequently Asked Questions (questions 20-24) and the Task Order Type Tool or contact the Center for Charge Card Management at gsa_smartpay@gsa.gov or (703) 605-2808.] 

a. Standard
b. Tailored
c. Pool
d. [bookmark: _2lwamvv]Tag-along
VIII.	Activities Authorized to Issue Orders Against the Task Order
125. If standard/tailored/pool – will the agency/organization allow other agencies/organizations to “tag-along” on its task order? (H.12.10.3)  If so, are there any agencies/organizations that will be named in the agency’s/organization’s task order?  (Note: Your agency’s/organization’s task order must state that “tag-alongs” are allowed.)
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